

Invitation to Tender

Instructions to Potential Suppliers

Wellbeing and Work Trials -Group Work

UI_DWP_101686

May 2016

Table of Contents

1.	General Information 2 -
2.	Administration of the Procurement Process 3 -
3.	Tender Submission Process 5 -
4.	Conditions Applying to this Tender 8 -
5.	Supplier Selection and Exclusion – The Qualification Envelope 11 -
6.	Tender Evaluation – The Technical Envelope 16 -
7.	Pricing Proposal – The Commercial Envelope 20 -
8.	Baseline Security Standard 20 -
9.	Merlin Standard 21 -
10.	Tender Clarification 22 -
11.	Contract Award 22 -
12.	Independent Approval 22 -
13.	Mandatory Standstill Period 23 -
14	Publication of Contract Award on Contracts Finder 23 -
15.	Post Contract Award 23 -
16.	Use of SMEs in the Contractor's Supply Chain 24 -
17.	DWP Complaints Procedure 25 -

1. General Information

- 1.1 Please note that, unless otherwise indicated, references to the "Authority" or to "DWP" throughout these documents mean the Secretary of State for Work and Pensions acting as part of the Crown through his/her representatives in the Department for Work and Pensions. References to "Potential Supplier" mean any person or organisation responding or, where the context requires, potentially responding to this Invitation to Tender (ITT).
- 1.2 These instructions, together with the specification and all other information and documents to which they refer, are designed to ensure that all tenders are given equal and fair consideration. It is important, therefore, that you provide all the information required in the format and order specified.
- 1.3 Please read these instructions carefully because non-compliance may result in disqualification of your tender. You must ensure you have read the full invitation to tender package including the specification, pricing proposal guidance and terms and conditions.

1.4 A Potential Supplier briefing event will be held on Monday 13th June 2016 at Five Ways House, Birmingham. At this post ItT issue

Supplier Event, the Department, in addition to providing potential suppliers with more details about the requirement and an opportunity to ask any questions, or raise any issues.

1.5 Suppliers should register their interest in attending this event using the form on the BravoSolutions portal.

2. Administration of the Procurement Process

- 2.1 The Authority is administering the procurement process electronically via the <u>DWP eProcurement Solution (ePS) Portal</u>. No hard copy documents will be issued during the competition and all communications with the Authority (including final submission of tenders) will be conducted via the DWP eProcurement Portal.
- 2.2 To ensure all communications relating to this procurement are received the Potential Supplier must ensure that the point of contact it nominates in the DWP eProcurement Solution portal is up to date. The portal is accessible 24 hours a day, 7 days a week, and 365 days a year unless notified otherwise by the DWP eProcurement Solution portal.
- 2.3 Support available to help you to understand and use the system includes:
 - Freephone helpdesk (0800 368 4850), available Mon-Fri 8am to 6pm (UK time in English language only)
 - Helpdesk via email: <u>help@bravosolution.co.uk</u>
 - Help guides.
- 2.4 Potential Suppliers must ensure that their DWP eProcurement Solution registration directly relates to the part of the supplier organisation that submits the tender (some larger suppliers may have several subsidiaries so registration needs to apply to that part of organisation responsible for this particular requirement).
- 2.5 Where a consortium/Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) is formed to submit a tender, the lead supplier is responsible for coordinating all the required information. See <u>specific guidance</u> and read the questions carefully.
- 2.6 Should you have any queries with accessing the portal, please contact DWP eProcurement Solution's dedicated supplier helpdesk by calling 0800 368 4850 or by emailing: <u>help@bravosolution.co.uk</u>.

Inputting Information

2.7 Use the online 'Help for Suppliers' function. The content is designed to explain the ePS Portal in business terms, allowing you to quickly understand the features and benefits of the software. Help for Suppliers content is presented by software module, and divided into process activities such as PQQs, ITTs and Auctions - just like the software itself.

- 2.8 Save progress regularly. For security reasons access to the portal will 'time out' if inactive (i.e. if you do not click 'save') for ~15 minutes. Failure to save regularly risks losing your work - this is part of strict government requirements to maintain security and tender integrity and cannot be changed. Note that typing does not mean you are active on the portal.
- 2.9 Please ensure that 'pop ups' are not blocked on your browser. Should you be inactive for ~15 minutes, the portal will notify you through a 'pop up'. It is vital that that you are able to see this in order to click the 'Refresh' link in this 'pop up' so you are not disconnected from the portal and lose any unsaved information.
- 2.10 Do not leave your response until the last minutes/hours before the deadline. If you experience connection problems you may miss the deadline. Late tenders cannot be accepted. Always upload generic information early to avoid last minute time pressure.
- 2.11 Please submit your response when completed. Failure to do this will result in your bid not being visible to the buyer. The 'submit response' button is at the top centre of the screen.
- 2.12 If the Buyer makes any changes to the settings and questions area of a live/running tender, Potential Suppliers must re-publish their response this is to ensure that changes are brought to your attention you may receive a message prompt from the Buyer generally this will not mean re-entering information.
- 2.13 Whilst the portal allows for large individual attachment sizes (max 50mb at a time), we recommend that you keep attachments to a manageable size to ensure ease & speed of access. Only attach documents that the Buyer has requested and make sure that you attach them in the correct area.
- 2.14 If you have any software queries refer to 'Help for Suppliers' in the first instance, if you still have an issue email or telephone the BravoSolution helpdesk with a tender reference, a clear description of the problem and your contact details (ensure that you leave plenty of time for issues to be resolved prior to any deadlines).
- 2.15 Do not use the 'Back' or 'Forward' buttons on your browser, you could potentially lose your work. Please use the links on the eTendering portal to navigate through the tenders.
- 2.16 To understand icons, use your mouse to 'hover' over the icon and view the 'ToolTip'. Please note that text responses are deliberately capped at 2000 characters (~350 words). If the Authority requires a longer response they will add an additional text box or an 'Attachment' question. Also note that Numeric fields will not accept text, spaces, symbols etc. Note the red asterisk indicates a mandatory field - this must be completed in order to submit your response to the buyer.

- 2.17 If you are delegating your response please ensure that your colleagues are aware of this information and are IT literate.
- 2.18 Please treat your eTendering portal logins securely if you believe that you have lost your password please log onto the website and click onto "Forgotten your password?" and follow the instructions.
- 2.19 The Qualification Envelope (supplier selection and exclusion questions) holds information provided when the Potential Supplier registered on the DWP eProcurement Solution. The answers provided in that profile will automatically be used to pre-populate some parts of the qualification envelope. Potential Suppliers may update these answers and the new information will be saved against the organisation profile.
- 2.20 Please allow sufficient time to submit the response. We recommend allowing time for a final check to be undertaken prior to the submission deadline. It will not be possible to upload any further information after the submission deadline. IT problems within Potential Suppliers' systems will not be considered reasonable grounds for late submission.
- 2.21 Where a question requires the upload of a document then that document must be completed in the format specified within the question. Files submitted in any other format will not be accepted. All acronyms and abbreviations, if used, must be fully explained.
- 2.22 Within the DWP eProcurement Portal Potential Suppliers are able to submit, modify and resubmit responses at any time prior to the submission deadline. Responses cannot be modified by Potential Suppliers after the submission deadline. Potential Suppliers must ensure they have only submitted a single response through the DWP eProcurement Portal.

3. Tender Submission Process

Background

- 3.1 The DWP eProcurement Portal relies on the completion of 3 envelopes which will contain all of the information the Authority requires to enable full evaluation to take place. All information should be uploaded as per instructions into the relevant envelopes on the DWP eProcurement Portal.
 - Qualification Envelope Is used for gathering information to qualify Potential Suppliers for further evaluation
 - Technical Envelope Is used for gathering information to allow for full evaluation of the technical side of the proposal
 - Commercial Envelope Is used to gather the Pricing Proposal

Tender Completion

- 3.2 The information or text contained within the ITT (including its Annexes) and your response, any variation of them and any formal interchange of correspondence or information will be incorporated into any subsequent contract/framework agreement that the Authority may enter into as a result of this ITT.
- 3.3 Responses must not exceed the pre-set margins and space allocation. In some cases the Authority may put a word limit on your response to some or all questions. These limits are provided in the Invitation to Tender document and any response in excess of these allocations will be disregarded and will not be taken into account.
- 3.4 Therefore, bullets, tables, graphs and charts in support of your responses are all permitted. Responses must be presented using Arial font size 12 (English Language and black typeface) this includes instances where information may be tabulated as part of the response. The only exception permitted is for illustrative screen shots, graphs and charts, which should be presented within the allocated page limit for the question they are relevant to and must not be embedded separately as this information will be disregarded.
- 3.5 Tenders should be completed using standard software e.g. Microsoft Word, Excel or PDF. Files submitted in Microsoft Project format will not be accepted.
- 3.6 All acronyms and abbreviations, if used, must be fully explained.

Procurement Timetable

3.7 Set out below is the proposed procurement timetable. This is intended as a **guide** and, whilst the Authority does not intend to depart significantly from it, there may be occasions, especially around obtaining Ministerial Approval, where the timetable will be subject to minor change.

Activity	Date
Publication of the OJEU Contract Notice (Day 1 of 120	27 th May 2016
day timeline)	
Publication of the ITT to all Potential Suppliers	31 st May 2016
Provider Briefing Event	13 th June 2016
Q&A - Set up and run an online/electronic Q&A facility	31 st May – 24 th
	June 2016
Final date for Q&A and dissemination to Potential	28 th June 2016
Suppliers	
Deadline for return of tenders	1 st July 2016 by
	10.00am
Evaluate tenders	4 th July 2016 – 19 th
	August 2016
Procurement and Commercial Board/Independent	22 nd August – 9 th
Approval	September 2016

Intention to Award notification issued to successful and unsuccessful tenderers	13 th September
Standstill period and offer debrief to both successful and unsuccessful tenderer's	14 th September – 27 th September 2016
Sign contract	28 th September 2016
Delivery Go Live	9 th January 2016
We expect referrals to start at the latest on 9 January 2017. However, we would welcome an earlier start date if successful bidders can provider assurance to the department that they have the required number of fully competent trainers to deliver the programme as described in the JOBS II manual.	

Action to take where requirement has been divided into Lots (Contract Package Areas)

- 3.8 On the occasions that the requirement is divided into Lots the ITT will be individually labelled to reflect the requirement for each Lot. This still requires the Potential Supplier to insert their company name where requested. A separate technical and commercial envelope must be completed for each Lot in which a Potential Supplier wishes to submit a tender.
- 3.9 The details in the qualification envelope will need to be completed only once but Potential Suppliers should still familiarise themselves with the instructions shown on the DWP eProcurement Portal as confirmation will be needed that the details are correct for each lot that a proposal is being submitted.
- 3.10 These labels are also part of DWP eTendering and eEvaluation requirements and must not be altered. In addition, the other tender document file names must not be altered under any circumstances.

Deadline for Submission of Tenders

- 3.11 All tenders must be received by the Authority by the tender submission deadline which is shown in the procurement timetable.
- 3.12 To ensure that all Potential Suppliers are treated fairly tenders received after the tender submission deadline will usually be rejected by the Authority. The decision whether to reject a tender received after the tender submission deadline is made entirely at the Authority's discretion.
- 3.13 A Potential Supplier may withdraw from this procurement by choosing not to submit a tender by the tender submission deadline. It would be useful to the department if you can advise us in advance that you will not be submitting a proposal and if possible the reasons behind your decision.

Additional Materials, Documents and Attachments

- 3.14 No additional documentation should be submitted with a tender unless specifically requested by the Authority
- 3.15 Information that forms part of general company literature or promotional brochures will not form part of the evaluation process and should not be submitted.
- 3.16 The tender should not contain any inserted, pasted or embedded pictures or documents (image files, Adobe Acrobat documents or other Word documents) unless specifically requested by the Authority
- 3.17 Any additional documents requested by the Authority must be clearly referenced within the body of the tender using a unique, un-ambiguous and relevant file name. They must be saved using MS Word (in Web Page, filtered format only), MS Excel, MS Power Point, Adobe Acrobat or jpeg formats. No other file formats should be used.

4. Conditions Applying to this Tender

Open Procedure

- 4.1 The Authority is managing this procurement in accordance with its general obligations under the Light Touch Regime in accordance with the Public Contracts Regulations 2015. This procurement exercise shall, therefore, be undertaken in accordance with Section 7 of the Regulations in accordance with the 'light touch' regime stipulated therein
- 4.2 It is the Authority's intention that this procurement exercise will comply with the overriding EU Procurement Directive principles for open and transparent competition to ensure value for money.

Authority's Terms and Conditions

4.3 Potential Suppliers are not permitted to submit their own terms and conditions. Material amendments to the Authority's terms and conditions will not be considered.

Costs and Expenses

- 4.4 Potential Suppliers are not entitled to claim from the Authority any costs or expenses which may be incurred in preparing and/or submitting a tender.
- 4.5 This applies whether or not the supplier or any other organisation is successful and also applies to any additional cost a Potential Supplier may incur if the Authority modifies or amends its requirements or if the Authority cancels this procurement for whatever reason.

Confidentiality

4.6 All information supplied by the Authority to Potential Suppliers must be treated in confidence (unless already in the public domain) and must not be disclosed to third parties other than as is necessary for the purposes

of preparing a response and for obtaining sureties or quotations for the purpose of submitting this tender. All information supplied by you to the Authority will similarly be treated in confidence except:

- For the disclosure of such information with regard to the outcome of the procurement process as may be required to be published in the Official Journal of the European Union in accordance with EU Directives or elsewhere in accordance with the requirements of UK government policy on the disclosure of information relating to government contracts
- II. That as part of the debriefing process we will inform any eliminated tenderer, who has made an admissible tender, of the characteristics and relative advantages of the successful tender(s), as well as, where appropriate, the qualitative evaluation score(s) achieved by and name(s) of the successful tenderer(s)
- III. In pursuance of the Authority's statutory obligations under the <u>Freedom of Information Act</u> 2000 or the Environmental Information Regulations or the UK Government's requirements on transparency. Even where it is indicated that information supplied is commercially sensitive the Authority may be required to disclose it. Material marked 'confidential' or similar does not mean the Authority accepts any duty of confidence
- IV. References may be sought from banks, existing or past clients, or other referees submitted by the tenderer. The Authority confirms that it will keep confidential any information obtained from referees other than to Crown Commercial Service and/or contracting authorities defined in the Public Contracts Regulations.
- 4.7 The Authority is subject to general control and reporting within Government and reports to the Cabinet Office and HM Treasury for all expenditure. Cabinet Office has a cross-Government role delivering overall Government policy on public procurement - including ensuring value for money and related aspects of good procurement practice.
- 4.8 For the purposes mentioned above, the Authority may disclose within Government any of the Potential Supplier's documentation/information (including any that the Potential Supplier considers to be confidential and/or commercially sensitive, such as specific bid information) submitted by the Potential Supplier to the Authority during this Procurement. The information will not be disclosed outside Government

Contract Period

4.9 The contract will be for the period September 2016 to February 2018 unless terminated by the Authority in accordance with the terms of the contract. Subject to satisfactory performance and with the agreement of both parties the contract may be extended for a period of up to a maximum of 12 months. We expect referrals to start at the latest on 9 January 2017. However, we would welcome an earlier start date if successful bidders can provider assurance to the department that they have the required number of fully competent trainers to deliver the programme as described in the JOBS II manual.

Potential Supplier Visits (where appropriate)

4.10 Where it is anticipated that the Authority's premises are to be used for the delivery of the contract the Authority will arrange site visits for all Potential Suppliers who wish to visit the locations concerned.

Amendments to the Tender Process or Tender Documents by the Authority

- 4.11 The Authority reserves the right to vary the tender process and/or amend the tender documents (including this ITT Instructions to Potential Suppliers document) at any time prior to the deadline for receipt of tenders. Any such amendment will be numbered, dated and issued by the Authority via the DWP eProcurement Portal. Where amendments are significant, the Authority may at its discretion extend the deadline for receipt of tenders.
- 4.12 The Authority reserves the right to discontinue this tendering process at any time and not to award a contract.

Potential Supplier Clarification (Q&A)

- 4.13 Potential Suppliers have the opportunity to raise questions about the ITT and request clarification about the requirement. All questions raised must be submitted via the <u>DWP eProcurement Solution Portal</u>.
- 4.14 The Q&A log will be published on the DWP eProcurement Portal and will be updated regularly. It will be the responsibility of the Potential Supplier to monitor the portal for the latest activity.
- 4.15 The last date for the submission of questions along with the date of the publication of the final Q&A log on the DWP eProcurement Portal is shown in the procurement timetable.
- 4.16 The final date for questions and answers and dissemination allows sufficient time for Potential Suppliers to impact this information before finalising their tenders for submission.
- 4.17 If a question is deemed by a Potential Supplier to be commercially confidential, then they should indicate that they believe this is the case. The Authority will consider this and if in agreement, will exercise due discretion in handling the question and limiting the circulation of the answer(s) to your organisation.
- 4.18 Questions not deemed to be commercially confidential will be considered by the Authority to be of significance to all Potential Suppliers. All questions and answers will be made anonymous and made available to all Potential Suppliers via the <u>DWP eProcurement Solution Portal</u>. If the

Authority intends to follow this course of action it will inform you before sharing the question and response.

Acceptance and Return of Tenders

- 4.19 By issuing the ITT the Authority is not bound in any way and does not have to accept any tender. Only the express terms of any contract, if and when executed shall have any contractual effect in connection with the matters to which this procurement relates.
- 4.20 The tender, comprising the information set out in the ITT must be completed and submitted in its entirety to the DWP eProcurement Portal by the stipulated deadline.
- 4.21 Tenders will undergo an initial compliance check to ensure that all information requested has been received. Tenders will be rejected if the complete information requested is not included as part of the tender documentation.

Period for which Tenders shall Remain Valid

4.22 Tenders shall remain valid and capable of acceptance for 180 days from the closing date for receipt of tenders.

Variant Proposals

4.24 Variant proposals will not be accepted unless otherwise stated in the Contract Notice.

Welsh Language

4.31 Where appropriate Potential Suppliers should be aware that if the contract delivers a service to members of the public in Wales then the Potential Supplier must comply with and fully understand their contractual obligations regarding the DWP Welsh Language Scheme. Full details can be found in the Welsh Language Scheme Contract Schedule and further details found by accessing 'A guide for DWP Contractors when delivering services to DWP customers in Wales'.

5. Supplier Selection and Exclusion – The Qualification Envelope

Principles

- 5.1 The supplier selection and exclusion questions assess the suitability of a Potential Supplier to deliver the authority's requirement. If you are successful at this stage of the procurement process, your bid will be evaluated in the subsequent award stage of the process.
- 5.2 Potential Suppliers should note that, in accordance with Regulation 57 of the Public Contracts Regulations 2015, the Authority may take account of information in the public domain in addition to information provided in the

bid. The Authority will contact the Potential Supplier to clarify such information.

Verification of Information Provided

5.3 Whilst reserving the right to request information at any time throughout the procurement process, the authority will allow Potential Suppliers to self-certify whether there are any mandatory / discretionary grounds for excluding their organisation.

Supplier Information

5.4 This section is used to gather the necessary details to understand the nature of the organisation and legal entity participating in the procurement exercise. This section is not scored.

Bidding Model

5.5 This section is used to gather information to allow the Authority to understand the nature of the Potential Supplier's proposed supply chain. The Authority requires additional information where the tender relies on a consortium and/or sub-contractors. This section is not scored but the Authority must be satisfied that the proposed bidding model will allow the requirement to be met successfully otherwise the bid will be rejected.

Sub-contractors

- 5.6 Where the Potential Supplier proposes to use one or more subcontractors to deliver some or all of the contract requirements full details must be provided, including members of the supply chain, the percentage of work being delivered by each sub-contractor and the key contract deliverables each sub-contractor will be responsible for.
- 5.7 The authority recognises that arrangements in relation to sub-contracting may be subject to future change, and may not be finalised until a later date. However, Potential Suppliers should be aware that where information provided to the authority indicates that sub-contractors are to play a significant role in delivering key contract requirements, any changes to those sub-contracting arrangements may affect the ability of the Potential Supplier to meet the requirement. Potential Suppliers should therefore notify the authority immediately of any change in the proposed sub-contractor arrangements. The authority reserves the right to deselect the Potential Supplier prior to any award of contract, based on an assessment of the updated information.
- 5.8 A Potential Supplier's tender must clearly identify in response to any question, when it is relying on a sub-contractor, the name of the particular sub-contractor and explain the sub-contractor's capability and experience as the context of the question requires.
- 5.9 The Authority does not require all sub-contractors be disclosed. It only requires a Potential Supplier to disclose those sub-contractors who directly contribute to the Potential Supplier's ability to meet its obligations under the contract. There is no need to specify those sub-contractors

providing general services to the Potential Supplier (such as window cleaners, lawyers, desktop software providers etc) that indirectly enable the Potential Supplier to perform the contract. For example if the Authority requires a Potential Supplier to hold a particular licence – then the Potential Supplier may indicate that 'XYZ Co' holds the licence and indicate that services covered by the scope of this licence will only be performed by its sub-contractor 'XYZ Co'.

Consortia arrangements

- 5.10 All members of the consortium will be required to provide the information required in **all** sections of the selection and exclusion questions. The consortium lead completes the questions on the eProcurement Portal with regard to their own organisation. They are responsible for coordinating and submitting one Annex C Supplier Selection for Consortium Members for each member of the consortium and one Annex D Consortium Arrangements.
- 5.11 Where you are proposing to create a separate legal entity, such as a Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV), you should provide details of the actual or proposed percentage shareholding of the constituent members within the new legal entity in a separate Appendix.
- 5.12 The authority recognises that arrangements in relation to consortia may be subject to future change. Potential Suppliers should therefore respond on the basis of the arrangements as currently envisaged. Potential Suppliers are reminded that the authority must be immediately notified of any changes, or proposed changes, in relation to the bidding model so that a further assessment can be carried out by applying the selection criteria to the new information provided. The authority reserves the right to deselect the Potential Supplier prior to any award of contract, based on an assessment of the updated information.
- 5.13 The Authority will not be seeking 'certificates of performance' to enable the past performance of consortium members to be evaluated and establish if they pass the minimum standards for reliability.

Contact Details

5.14 You must provide full details of a contact for the Authority to use in relation to this procurement. The contact should be able to answer questions regarding the bid and act on behalf of the Potential Supplier. This section is not scored.

Licensing and Registration

5.15 The Authority requires you to indicate if licensing and registration is required for your business and, if so, whether your organisation holds the required licensing and registration. This section is not scored but the Authority must be satisfied that Potential Supplier has the required licenses and registration to meet the requirement otherwise the bid will be rejected.

Grounds for Mandatory Exclusion

5.16 Refer to the additional notes provided on the ePS Portal. This section is used to establish whether there is any reason that the Potential Supplier should not be allowed to continue to participate in the procurement. If you answer 'yes' to one of these questions, indicating that your organisation meets one of the grounds for mandatory exclusion, you will not be allowed to participate further in the procurement unless you can demonstrate adequate 'self-cleaning'.

Non-payment of Taxes

5.17 Refer to the additional notes provided on the ePS Portal. This is an additional ground for mandatory exclusion. If you answer 'yes' to this question you will not be allowed to participate further in the procurement unless you can demonstrate adequate 'self-cleaning'.

Grounds for Discretionary Exclusion – Part 1

5.18 Refer to the additional notes provided on the ePS Portal. The Authority can choose to exclude a Potential Supplier who answers 'yes' to one of these questions. You may not be allowed to participate further in the procurement unless you can demonstrate adequate '<u>self-cleaning</u>'.

Conflicts of Interest

5.19 Refer to the additional notes provided on the ePS Portal. This is an additional ground for discretionary exclusion. You must identify any potential conflict of interest and provide full details on Annex B including how the conflict of interest might be effectively remedied. If the Authority considers the integrity of the competition is compromised by a conflict of interest you will not be allowed to participate further. The Authority will contact you to discuss further where a potential conflict of interest is identified.

Self-Cleaning

- 5.20 Refer to the additional notes provided on the ePS Portal. This section allows Potential Suppliers to provide further information where they have answered 'yes' to any of the grounds for mandatory rejection, including non-payment of taxes, or grounds for discretionary rejection.
- 5.21 Potential Suppliers should use Annex E to explain in detail how they have addressed issue (identified by a 'yes' answer). The Authority will consider whether the 'self-cleaning' adequately addresses the risk to reliability exposed by the 'yes' answer.

Economic and Financial Standing

- 5.23 The Potential Supplier should provide the information requested to demonstrate its economic/financial standing.
- 5.24 The information will be assessed on the basis of a Red/Amber/Green rating as set out in the document included within this ItT pack entitled

Invitation to Tender (ITT) Financial Evaluation Methodology. You should ensure that you carefully read this document.

Insurance

5.25 This section allows you to self-certify that you have or will have adequate insurance as required by the Authority for the delivery of the contract. You will not be allowed to participate further in the procurement unless you can meet the insurance requirements.

Compliance with Equality Legislation

5.26 This section covers the Potential Supplier's history of compliance with equality legislation. The Authority can choose to exclude a Potential Supplier who has been found to have acted in a discriminatory way in the past 3 years. The Potential Supplier has the opportunity to provide details of mitigating factors. The Authority will consider whether the mitigation adequately addresses the risk exposed by the 'yes' answer.

Environmental Management

5.27 This section covers the Potential Supplier's history of compliance with environmental legislation. The Authority can choose to exclude a Potential Supplier who has been found to have breached environmental legislation in the past 3 years. The Potential Supplier has the opportunity to provide details of mitigating factors. The Authority will consider whether the mitigation adequately addresses the risk exposed by the 'yes' answer.

Health and Safety

- 5.28 This section allows the Potential Suppliers to self-certify that they have an adequate health and safety policy. UK employers with less than five employees are not required by law to have a health and safety policy and will not be excluded for this reason.
- 5.29 Where the Potential Supplier has been received enforcement/remedial orders from a health and safety body/authority in the past 3 years, allows them to provide details of remedial action.
- 5.30 The Authority can choose to exclude a Potential Supplier who has received an enforcement/remedial order in relation to health and safety in the past 3 years. The Potential Supplier has the opportunity to provide details of mitigating factors. The Authority will consider whether the mitigation adequately addresses the risk exposed by the 'yes' answer.

Confirmation and Declaration

5.31 The final section of Supplier Selection and Exclusion – the Qualification Envelope, is a declaration against the information provided. This must be completed by a person with authority to act on behalf of the Potential Supplier. This section also serves as a checkpoint for Potential Suppliers to confirm that they have provided all the information, including additional Annexes, required so far.

6. Tender Evaluation – The Technical Envelope

Principles

- 6.1 The tender evaluation questions assess the Potential Supplier's proposal to deliver the authority's requirement. This information enables the Authority to carry out a qualitative evaluation of the tender.
- 6.2 The information provided in the tender proposal will be evaluated against the pre-determined Award Criteria as stated in the Invitation to Tender.
- 6.3 The DWP ePS Portal asks Potential Suppliers to submit responses which directly correspond with the Award Criteria.

Qualitative Scoring Methodology

6.4 The responses to the ITT will then be scored against the <u>criteria and</u> <u>weightings</u> using scoring scale set out here.

Score	Definition			
6	The response was robust, and clearly articulated in all respects			
	providing strong detailed evidence that all criteria would be met,			
	with no weaknesses or areas of concern.			
4	The response was clear, good articulation in most respects			
	providing evidence that the majority of criteria would be met, with			
	minor weaknesses or areas of concern.			
2	The response was limited, reasonable articulation is some			
	respects providing evidence that some of the criteria would be met;			
	there were significant weaknesses or areas of concern			
0	The response was weak, poorly articulated/inconsistent in all			
	respects, providing insufficient evidence that the criteria would be			
	met, with major weaknesses, issues or omissions			

Draft Security Plan

- 6.5 Cabinet Office has introduced mandatory requirements relating to data handling, security and information assurance in government contracts. Information must be protected, together with systems, equipment and processes which support its use. Our contractors must provide an appropriate level of security.
- 6.6 Potential Suppliers (whether for a contract or place on a framework) are required to submit a Draft Security Plan detailing how you will comply with the DWP Security Policy for Contractors, which includes compliance with ISO/IEC27001 and Cyber Essentials Scheme. A copy of this document can be found on <u>'Gov UK Other DWP procurement and policy documents'</u> and full guidance is provided in the relevant document and in Schedule 6 of the DWP Standard Terms and Conditions. A full Security Plan will be due 20 days after contract award.

Off-shoring (including Landed Resources)

- 6.8 In accordance with the DWP Offshoring Policy, prior written consent from DWP must be sought where Potential Suppliers (and/or their subcontractors) are proposing to host or access Departmental systems, services or official information outside of the United Kingdom, or to bring foreign nationals to the United Kingdom to provide services in delivery of the Contract.
- 6.9 Potential Suppliers must be aware of this and must submit an application for approval together with their tender. Where DWP gives consent, the Potential Supplier shall comply with any reasonable instructions notified to it by DWP in relation to the Authority Data in question. More information can be found in the document A Guide to DWP Offshoring Policy which can be found on <u>'Gov UK Other DWP procurement and policy documents'</u>.

Transfer of Undertakings (Protection of Employment) Regulations (TUPE)

- 6.10 Your attention is drawn to the Transfer of Undertakings (Protection of Employment) Regulations 2006 (TUPE). It is the Authority's view that TUPE is unlikely to be applicable if this ITT results in a Contract being placed. Nevertheless, it is your responsibility to consider whether or not TUPE applies in the individual circumstances of your tender, particularly if you are proposing to submit an innovative tender.
- 6.11 If you have a contrary view to that of the Authority on the applicability of TUPE, it would be helpful if you would advise the Authority using Annex G, giving the reasons no later than 1 week prior to the tender return date.

Qualitative Evaluation Questions and Weightings

- 6.12 The information below provides details of the evaluation questions and associated weightings in priority order. Page limits (Arial Font 12) have been provided for each question, if providers exceed these limits, only the response within these page limits will be assessed; the remainder of the answer will be disregarded.
- 6.13 Potential Suppliers should note that the questions form part of the electronic Invitation to Tender document accesses in BravoSolutions. You are required to complete the attached word document for each question and re- upload your response. Please ensure that you also attach any additional required appendices to support your responses.
- 6.14 Economic operators forming consortia or Special Purpose Vehicles (SPVs) should refer to the relevant sections of the Instructions to Potential Suppliers.

- 6.15 Bidders' tender responses will be scored against the scoring scale set out above and weightings set out below which reflect the considered importance of the question to the Authority.
- 6.16 80% of the overall marks will be awarded as part of the qualitative evaluation. The maximum score available is 186. The score awarded for each question will be multiplied by its respective weighting shown in the table below to give a total score.

Question	Question	Weighting		% of the Score	Max weighted score available
2.4.2	Knock out question – Jobs II Manual Fidelity				
2.4.3	Claimant Journey	5	16%		30
2.4.4	Claimant Needs, Barriers and Support	5	16%		30
2.4.5	Delivery Strategy	2	6%		12
2.4.6	Staff Resources	3	10%		18
2.4.7	Training and Adherence to the Jobs ii Manual;	5	16%		30
2.4.8	Quality - Management Information	3	10%		18
2.4.9	Management and Monitoring	3	10%		18
2.4.10	Premises	2	6%		12
2.4.11	Implementation Plan	3	10%		18
TOTALS			100%		186

Scoring Scheme

6.17 <u>The Authority will reject any ItT where a response to question 2.4.2 is</u> <u>"No"</u>

- 6.18 <u>The Authority will reject any ItT where a response is scored **0** in **any** of the questions and may reject any ItT where a response to questions 2.4.3 or 2.4.4 scores a **2**. We reserve the right to exclude any Tender which scores 2 or less on these questions from this Procurement. This methodology will be applied to ensure equitable treatment and consistency across all providers for this question.</u>
- 6.19 Qualitative scoring represents 80% of the overall evaluation. The highest quality tender is awarded 80 marks, with all other tenders being awarded marks in relation to their percentage variance from the highest quality tender e.g. Bidder B has scored 170 which is 6.6% less than 182 therefore Bidder B will score 6.6% less than 75 (6.6% of 75 is 4.95).

Note: this example is for illustrative purposes only; we will be working to all decimal places.

Bidder	Quality Score	Quality Tender Score out of 80
А	182	80
В	170	75
С	160	70

Tie Breaker

- 6.20 The application of the tie-breaker will be undertaken after the quality and financial scores have been added together. If at any step this produces a clear result which differentiates a Supplier who has the same overall quality score, the tie breaker process will be concluded.
 - Step 1 Highest Score Question 2.4.3 Claimant Journey
 - Step 2 Highest Score Question 2.4.4 Claimant Needs Barriers and Support
 - **Step 3 Highest Score** Question 2.4.7 Training and Adherence to the Jobs II Manual;
 - Step 4 Highest Score Question 2.4.8 Management and Monitoring.
 - Step 5 Highest Score Question 2.4.6 Staff Resources;
 - Step 6 Highest Score Question 2.4.9 Management Information
 - Step 7 Highest Score Question 2.4.11- Implementation Plan;
 - Step 8 Highest Score Question 2.4.5 Delivery Strategy;
 - Step 9 Highest Score Question 2.4.10 Premises
- 6.21 The Authority is committed to open government and to meeting its legal responsibilities under the Freedom of Information Act 2000. All information submitted to the Authority may need to be disclosed by the Authority in response to a request under the Act. If you consider that any

of the information included in your tender is commercially sensitive, please identify it and explain (in broad terms) what harm may result from disclosure if a request is received, and the time period applicable to that sensitivity.

6.22 You should be aware that even where you have indicated that information is commercially sensitive, the Authority may be required to disclose it under the terms of the Act if a request is received. Please note that the receipt of material marked 'confidential' or equivalent by the Authority should not be taken to mean that the Authority accepts any duty of confidence by virtue of that marking. If a request is received, the Authority may also be required to disclose details to unsuccessful tenderers.

Proposed amendments to Contract Documents

6.23 Refer to the additional notes provided on the ePS Portal. This section allows you to propose minor amendments to the terms and conditions. Material amendments will not be considered.

Confirmation and Declaration

6.24 The final section of Tender Evaluation – The Technical Envelope, is a declaration against the information provided. This must be completed by a person with authority to act on behalf of the Potential Supplier. This section also serves as a checkpoint for Potential Suppliers to confirm that they have provided all the information, including additional Annexes, required so far.

7. Pricing Proposal – The Commercial Envelope

- 7.1 This envelope is where the Pricing Proposal should be uploaded. You should refer to the Supporting Guidance for Completion of the Financial Proposal document which provides guidance for completion of each section.
- 7.2 Your completed Pricing Proposal should be uploaded into the Commercial Envelope.

Price Evaluation Methodology

- 7.3 The Quality Assessment will account for 80% of the overall tender mark and the financial assessment will account for the remaining 20%.
- 7.4 The Financial Evaluation will be based on the information provided in the Pricing Proposal Documentation.
- 7.5 There are 2 stages involved in the financial evaluation of Tenders;
 - Financial Viability Risk Assessment (FVRA) of the Tenderer;
 - Pricing Proposal Evaluation

- 7.6 The information provided under Economic and Financial Standing will be subject to financial risk assessment which may give the Authority grounds to exclude you from the competition.
- 7.7 For further details on the Financial Evaluation process please see the, Pricing Proposal, Financial Evaluation Methodology and Pricing Proposal Guidance which form part of this ITT pack.

Overall Scores

7.8 For the purpose of this evaluation the overall scores will be produced by combining the Qualitative Score (out of 80) with the Financial Score (out of 20).

Bidder	Qualitative Score	Financial Score	Overall Score - Out of a maximum score of 100.
A	80	20	100
В	75	19	94
С	70	14	84

Overall Score

Note: Scores for illustrative purposes only, we will be working to all decimal places.

8. Baseline Security Standard

- 8.1 Where contractors staff are to be given access to Authority's assets (defined as premises, systems, information or data) the attention of Potential Suppliers is drawn to their contractual obligation. Full details of the actions required to comply with the above procedures, can be found in the guidance document 'HMG Baseline Personnel Security Standard A Guide for DWP Contractors'. A PDF version of this document can be viewed on <u>gov.uk</u>.
- 8.2 Contractors' staff working in Northern Ireland will be required to be cleared via the Access NI procedures, more information can be obtained at <u>www.dojni.gov.uk/accessni</u>. A copy of this document in Microsoft Word format can be provided on request. Please note that Potential Suppliers are expected to meet any costs this may involve.

9. Merlin Standard

Potential Suppliers need to be aware that they must attain the Merlin Standard, if not already held, where they have a supply chain within their delivery model for this contract. Potential Suppliers will be assessed against the Merlin Standard by a third party organisation within a year of the contract go live and they must achieve accreditation within 1 year and every two years thereafter . For further information on the Merlin Standard, please see:

http://www.merlinstandard.co.uk/ http://www.dwp.gov.uk/docs/merlin-standard.pdf; and http://www.dwp.gov.uk/docs/sub-contracting-merlin-guidance.pdf

10. Tender Clarification

- 10.1 DWP may need to clarify details of your tender and in those instances DWP will send any questions using the DWP eProcurement Portal to the named person (by email) that is registered on the system, who should arrange for a reply to be provided by the stipulated deadline.
- 10.2 DWP may seek independent financial and market advice to validate information declared, or to assist in the evaluation.

11. Contract Award

Parent Company Guarantee (PCG)

- 11.1 If your company has a parent company and should you be deemed successful in tendering for this contract, then DWP may require a signed Parent Company Guarantee (PCG) to be in place prior to any contract(s) being signed.
- 11.2 Their may be exceptional circumstances where the wording needs to be amended or an equivalent deed of guarantee supplied. These may include Special Purpose Vehicles (SPVs), consortia and organisations that have parent companies based abroad.
- 11.3 If the parent company is a charity, the Authority would need to understand whether there is anything in the provisions of the charity's constitution that prevents them from being able to offer a PCG. In these circumstances the Authority may require an alternative guarantor.

Ranking Tenders – Recommendation for Contract Award

- 11.4 The tender process has been designed to ensure that tenders are evaluated fairly to ascertain the most economically advantageous tender and once the qualitative and financial aspects have been evaluated the Authority will produce a ranked merit list based on this tender process.
- 11.5 The Potential Supplier(s), who obtains the highest overall score from the evaluation process, taking into account the Award Criteria weightings, will be recommended for contract
- 11.6 Before any contract can be entered into the Authority is mandated to seek and obtain Independent Approval, Ministerial Approval and possibly Crown Representative Approval.

12 Independent Approval

12.1 The results of the Qualitative and Price Evaluation Process (resultant rankings along with the marks awarded) will be independently checked

and verified by individual(s) not previously involved in the procurement process.

12.2 Subject to this Independent Approval the Department may then seek Ministerial Approval before an award of contract can be made.

13. Mandatory Standstill Period

13.1 The authority is not obliged to observe a mandatory standstill period, as this procurement is not fully subject to the Public Contracts Regulations 2015. Notwithstanding this, the authority does however intend to observe, on a voluntary basis, a 10 day pause between notification of the contract award decision and execution of the contract with the successful supplier.

14. Publication of Contract Award on Contracts Finder

14.1 Irrespective of whether or not publication of a Contract Award Notice in OJEU is required, details of all contracts awarded with a value greater than £10,000 will be published on the Contracts Finder website. Details will be published after 20 days following the end of the standstill period or after 20 days from the award of contract where no standstill applies.

15. Post Contract Award

Contract Documentation

15.1 The Authority will be responsible for producing a final contract document and issuing to the successful supplier.

Sustainable Development

15.2 In accordance with the Sustainable Development Contract Schedule the successful supplier is required to complete and provide a policy statement (within 6 months of contract (or call-off) start date and annually thereafter) to demonstrate how they will satisfy and adhere to the principles of sustainable development. Also at the 6-month stage the successful supplier will need to produce an Sustainable Development Action Plan detailing (but not limited to) how they will tackle key issues such as waste minimisation, water consumption reduction and carbon emissions within their business and in relation to this contract.

Diversity and Equality

15.3 In accordance with the Diversity and Equality Contract Schedule the successful supplier is required to complete and provide a Diversity and Equality Delivery Plan (within 6 months of contract start date and annually thereafter) detailing their approach to Diversity and Equality within their business and in relation to this contract.

Apprenticeships and Skills

15.4 In accordance with the Apprenticeships and Skills Contract Schedule and in line with the Governments objective to support economic growth the successful supplier is required to submit an apprenticeships and skills report (within 6 months of contract start date) which should be specific to this contract.

16. Use of SMEs in the Contractor's Supply Chain

- 16.1 The Authority recognises the important role small and medium enterprises (SMEs) have in helping to deliver economic growth and prosperity. SMEs are defined as enterprises which employ fewer than 250 persons and which have an annual turnover not exceeding 50 million euro, and/or an annual balance sheet total not exceeding 43 million euro. The Authority is committed to supporting the governments target of 25% of government spending with third party suppliers to go to SMEs through either direct spend or indirectly through the supply chain where it is relevant to the contractual requirement to do so and provides value for money.
- 16.2 In support of the government's commitment on SMEs, the Authority is putting in place processes to promote greater engagement with SMEs. The Authority encourages its suppliers to make their sub-contracting opportunities accessible to smaller companies and implement SME-friendly policies in their supply-chains.
- 16.3 The Contractor is encouraged to:
 - Open opportunities for SMEs in supply chains by splitting requirements into smaller elements to make them more attractive to the SME market whilst bringing innovation, flexibility and value for money
 - Advertise any sub-contracting opportunities where appropriate and economical to do so, for example by using Contracts Finder or informing local networks/partners
 - Where possible pay SMEs earlier than the contractual requirement of 30 days from receipt of valid invoice
 - Work with SMEs throughout the life of the contract to develop innovative and cost effective solutions delivered through the supply chain.
- 16.4 Regular contract review meetings should be used to enable both parties to explore continued and increased use of SMEs where appropriate throughout the life of the contract. Additional information may be requested by the Authority on the volume of business undertaken throughout the supply chain with SMEs.

Expenditure with SMEs

16.5 The Authority is required to provide regular reports on the level of procurement spend with SMEs to the Cabinet Office. To measure and

accurately report on this, the Contractor and where applicable, its subcontractors shall identify the volume of indirect expenditure the Authority undertakes with SMEs and shall provide this information on a quarterly basis to the Authority or Cabinet Office.

17. DWP Complaints Procedure

17.1 The Authority has published a <u>Commercial Complaints Process</u> for use during competitive procurement.